
 

INCORPORATION AND EARLY YEARS 
 
The original incorporation proposal called for inclusion of subdivisions over a wide area from the 
D.C. line to Hyattsville. A committee in 1909 reviewed the proposal (the members of the group 
included men from the subdivisions of Mount Rainier, Holladay, Rhode Island Avenue, Wilen 
Heights, Brentwood, Cottage City, Edgemont, and the Colored Citizens’ Association of Brent-
wood). The committee found that property owners in some of the subdivisions opposed inclusion 
in the new town; those refusing inclusion in the new Mount Rainier later became parts of Brent-
wood, Cottage City, North Brentwood, and Hyattsville. (Wash. Herald 2/10/1909)  
 
The committee met at the 34th Street 
Chapel (now 4029 34th Street). Once 
agreement was reached on which subdi-
visions would be included, the state leg-
islature enacted the charter on April 11, 
1910. The citizens ratified the charter 
in a special vote on April 14,1910.  At 
the first election in May 1910, Robert 
E. Joyce became mayor by only a few 
votes and served just one year.  Council 
members elected were C.O. Bohrer, J. 
Benson Moore, William H. Vanneman, 
and Thomas Elliott.  According to news 
accounts, politics were volatile. Joyce’s 
opponents referred to him as a “political boss.” At a particularly contentious council meeting, at-
tendees saw a pistol partially hidden under his coat. Joyce defended his right to carry a pistol since 
he also served as a justice of the peace. (WP April 1911) 
 
Joyce lost his re-election bid in 1911 to Joseph Plant who then had his own political crisis.  Former 
mayor Joyce and supporters presented a petition to recall Councilman Elliott who—among other 
grievances—was accused of being responsible for initiating a 25 cent surcharge on residents for sani-
tary initiatives. The group threatened to recall Plant as well. The newspaper accounts noted that 
the process for recalls had been included in the charter, but it was more commonly used in the 
western U.S. and rarely adopted in the East. (WP 11/20/1911) 
 
POTTS HALL 
 
Potts Hall, 3205 Rhode Island Avenue, was a social center even before the town was incorporated. 
The first town council meetings were held in the hall, as well as initial services of at least three lo-
cal churches.  At New Year’s celebrations in 1910, the Mount Rainier Amusement and Physical 
Culture Club attempted to sponsor a boxing match on the second floor of Potts Hall. The first 
floor was a pool hall at that time. Deputy Sheriff Mohler prevented the bout from taking place on 
the grounds that the fight was illegal and the club was not properly chartered. (WP 1/2/1910)  

Plumer’s Station, Rhode Island Avenue at 34th Street 



Earliest known photo of Potts Hall (1930s), provided by the Order of the Eastern Star 

which owned the building for many years until the City bought it in 2010. 



GRANDFATHER CLAUSE 
 
Section 3 of the 1910 charter (see next page) prevented African Americans from voting since it 
prohibited registration of any man who did not have a relative entitled to vote prior to Jan. 1, 
1868. Previously naturalized citizens had been provided a loophole so that they could register. 
Such “grandfather clauses” were not uncommon in the Southern states after Reconstruction. But 
in 1915, the U.S. Supreme Court found a similar grandfather clause in the Oklahoma Constitu-
tion to be invalid.  
 
In 1916, the Mount Rainier charter was amended to remove the “grandfather clause.” But the 
town continued to keep its own voter registration rolls and thereby control over who was added to 
the list. Names were added only on three days that fell not more than 40 days and not less than 30 
days prior to the election that occurred only every two years. The time and place of the registration 
was determined by the town clerk.  In addition, a voter had to have lived in the town for at least 
365 days prior to the election.  

 
The 19th Amendment to the U.S. Constitution was ratified in 1920, providing women the right to 
vote (nullifying the town’s charter language which continued to only provide men with the right to 
register). 
 
VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
The first formal meeting of the Mount Rainier Volunteer Fire Department occurred in the kitchen 
of John Klein in 1911. In that same year, a lot was acquired and a frame building was constructed. 
In 1913, a Knox automobile was converted to a hose wagon and placed in service. This was the 
first piece of motorized fire equipment in the county. In 1915, a Model T Ford Chemical Truck 
was purchased and a Model T Ford Hose Wagon was added in 1917. 
 

34th Street Chapel — 1910 4029 34th Street 



Grandfather Clause— the denial of the vote to blacks is in Sec. 3 of the first Mount Rainier 

Charter (above) which limits voting to “all citizens who prior to January 1st, 1868, were enti-

tled to vote in the State of Maryland or any other State of the United States at a State election, 

and the lawful male descendants of any person who prior to January 1st, 1868, was entitled to 

vote in this State or in any other State of the United States at a State election…” 



 
1910 CENSUS 
(Excerpts from article by Daniel Preston in 75th Anniversary Book) 
 
In 1910, the U.S. Census recorded a population of 1,242 for Mount Rainier. Although relatively 
new, it was as large as Takoma Park and larger than most other Maryland suburbs.  Only Laurel 
and Rockville (both more like country towns than suburbs) and neighboring Hyattsville 
(population 1,917) were larger. By 1920, the population had reached nearly 2,400. Immigrants 
were few in the early years. In 1910, there were less than 100, and most of them had been in the 
U.S. for over 20 years. The low cost of houses meant that most residents owned homes. The cen-
sus of 1910 indicates only 51 renters. 
 
In 1910, there were 299 households.  Most of the residents were adults. Most homes had at least 
three adults living in them. This would include close relatives, servants, and boarders. The small 
number of children explains why the town shared a school with neighboring Brentwood. Of the 
299 heads of households, 239 were under 50 years of age, and 165 were under the age of 40. Of 
the 801 adults, 576 were married. Most of the couples had at least one child.  Gas and electricity 
were available, but water and sewer lines were not built until 1917. 
 
In 1910, the most common occupations were those in the building trades. Of the 460 employed 
persons in town, 120, or approximately one-fourth, were employed in this line of work. The hous-
ing boom created demand for carpenters, bricklayers, plasterers, painters, electricians, plumbers, 
and roofers.  There is no indication where these many men worked, but from Mount Rainier they 
could have taken the streetcar to the growing suburbs to the north or into Washington. Many 
probably found work in the immediate area. 
 
The next largest area of employment was the federal government, which provided work for 111 
town residents.  Several worked at the local post office, but most travelled into D.C. and worked as 
clerks. The two largest federal employers were the printing office and the Navy Yard. Thus, the city 
was a “blue-collar suburb” from the very start. 
 
Retailing provided the third largest field of employment. 76 persons worked as salesmen, sales-
ladies, or in some other form of retail work. In addition to these, there were 47 others who were 
employed in a craft involved with retailing. This group included dressmakers, butchers, tailors, 
shoemakers, bakers, furniture makers, and so on. One craft that, perhaps, would not fall into this 
category was the carriage trade. Apparently there was a carriage shop in the area; the census lists 
five men employed as carriage painters, one as a carriage maker, two as wheel-wrights, and two as 
harness makers. There were stores and shops in town, and a number of the town’s residents un-
doubtedly worked in the immediate vicinity. But, as there were not enough retail establishments to 
employ anywhere near 120 people, most of the retail employees worked in Washington. 
 
An odd mixture of professionals tempered the working-class majority.  Besides two doctors, two 
attorneys, and three school teachers, there were five nurses (all employed by private families), a 
dentist, a newspaperman, and a stockbroker. Although there were several religious congregations, 
only one minister lived in town. 



 
Eight residents found employment in the arts and entertainment field—an artist, two music teach-
ers, a musician, a singer, two actors, and a scenery changer at a theater. Semiskilled and unskilled 
trades such as farm labor, wagoneering, and machinery operation also provided employment. Be-
cause Mount Rainier was a working-class neighborhood, there were few servants. Besides the five 
nurses, there were only eleven live-in servants, three of them with one family. While there could 
have been day servants who lived elsewhere, the employment make-up of Mount Rainier makes 
this seem unlikely.  
 
A final occupation class consisted of jobs that were not really professional, not necessarily skilled, 
and yet, not unskilled. Among these occupations were telephone and telegraph operators (10); of-
fice workers (10); motormen for the streetcars (4); and a fisherman, a steamboat captain, and a 
steamboat machinist. 
 
The residents in the workforce were primarily male. Of the 396 women living in town in 1910, 
only 75 were employed outside the home; of these, only 18 were married. Those women who did 
work were usually young (18 to 25 years old), unmarried adult daughters. The census figures sug-
gest that once a woman married, she did not seek employment, whether she had children or not. 
There is no pattern among the 18 married working women that would allow conclusions. 
 
Although the community of Mount Rainier was only eight years old in 1910 and had been incor-
porated just that same year, the tone the town would maintain through the future was established. 
It was—and is—a suburban town of small frame houses occupied by middle-income people. 
 
WATER SYSTEM 
 
The homes originally had individual wells and outhouses. Large homes clustered around Shepherd 
and 33rd Streets had a small water system supplied from the old spring (believed to have been the 
Clemson’s source of water). In 1914, the town’s health officer reported that the water supply was 
in a “frightful condition” and recommended that the council issue bonds to finance a water and 
sewer system. (WP 1/21/1914) 

34th and Taylor Streets—2010 34th and Taylor Streets—1911 



A photo of the 1912 carnival parade as it moves westward down today’s Perry 

Street. The brick building behind the automobile is the rear of  Star-Potts 

Hall. The present City Hall replaced the home (3500 Perry Street) to the right 

of Star-Potts in the 1990s. 



The sign behind the men says “Get Post Cards of the Carnival and Parade Here.” Therefore 

explaining the source of the photos we have from the event. 



 
In 1917, construction began on the water and sewer system, but litigation slowed completion of 
the work. The town finally won a suit against the contractor, but no meters were supplied to con-
nect houses that desired service.   
 
The town’s water tank was located at the high point, 31st and Shepherd Streets (probably at today’s 
4014 31st St. which still has an odd concrete pad in the 
backyard that may be a vestige of the tower).  Norman Ven-
ning who spent his life in Mount Rainier remembered that 
the location was surrounded by large old oaks that had been 
around the Clemson mansion.  Many ancient oaks still 
stand in the yards of the nearby homes. 
 
In the end, the system, including the springs and pumping 
station on Columbia Avenue (now Hamilton St.),  was sold 
to the Washington Suburban Sanitary Commission in 1922. 
 
OTHER EVENTS AND FACTS 
 
1912 
•Mount Rainier’s Boy Scouts of America Troop No. 3 recognized (later 
changed to Troop 203). 
 
1916 
•The first service of the Methodist Church was held in Star-Potts Hall. 
 
1919 
•First movie shown at Potts Hall. 
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Spring Park, 33rd and Shepherd 

Streets—yesterday and today 



St. John’s Church evolves after 1913 (above) 

with an addition on the front (right), and in the 

1930s (top of page), the cornerstone was laid for 

a new building. 

Mount Rainier’s water tower is visible behind the houses in this 1930s 

photo of the cornerstone laying ceremony at St. John’s Episcopal 

Church at Rainier and 34th Streets. Only known photo of the water 

tower which would have stood near intersection of Shepherd and 31st 

Streets (probably at 4014 31st Street). 



 

 

1914 Electoral Topographical Map (above)  “Reform School” is Fort Lincoln today. 

 

Wooden pipes wrapped in coiled wire 

suppled water in the early days. This 

section was dug up in 2010 during 

street reconstruction.  

See also, “Wooden Water Pipes Re-

placed in Mt. Rainier.” By Harold 

Willard. PG Post, 12/5/1959. 



Controversy over the purchase of the 

town’s water supply (springs located 

on the Northwest Branch below to-

day’s Hamilton Street) erupted in the 

1919 mayoral campaign.  

 

Weber lost the election. 







The following pages are reprinted from the 75th Anniversary history booklet.  

 



This house still stands at 3200 Upshur Street. 



Boy Scout Troop 3, formed in 1912,  

poses in Spring Park.  

Later became Troop 203. 


